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PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 
4 WORLD TRADE CENTER 

150 GREENWICH STREET, 21ST  FL. 
NEW YORK, NY 10007 

6/22/2016 

ADDENDUM # 1 

To prospective Bidder(s) on Bid # 46298:  “Snow Removal from Aeronautical Operations 
Areas at John F. Kennedy International Airport - Three (3) Year Requirements Contract,”  

Now Due back on 6/28/2016, no later than 11:00AM: 

I. CHANGES/MODIFICATIONS

The following changes/modifications are hereby made to the solicitation documents:

A. The bid due date is extended to June 28, 2016 no later than 11:00AM.

B. Part III, Section 5 “Liquidated Damages”:

Delete paragraph “iv)” in its entirety and replace it with the following:
“If equipment is unavailable or unusable when needed for the performance of 
Work, or if equipment fails during the performance of services and is not repaired 
or replaced within one hour of incident, then the compensation payable by the Port 
Authority to the Contractor will be reduced by an amount equal to the product 
obtained by multiplying 200% of the Unit Price or Hourly Rate for each piece of 
unusable equipment by the number of hours or fraction thereof during which the 
required equipment is unavailable or unusable.” 

C. Part IV - Pricing Sheets:

Delete the Pricing Sheets for Supplemental Work (pages 6, 8 and 10) in their entirety
and replace them with the attached revised pages labeled “Revised 6/21/2016”.

D. Part V - Specifications:
a) Section 1 entitled “Specific Definitions”: Delete the definition of “Clearance of

Snow” or “Snow Removal” in its entirety and replace it with the following:
“ “Clearance of Snow” or “Snow Removal” means the removal of accumulated 
snow, slush or hail, and performance of deicing services, to the satisfaction of 
the Manager.” 
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b) Section 2 entitled “Work Required by the Specifications”: Delete the second
sentence of the first paragraph and replace it with the following:

“The Contractor shall provide the equipment specified herein for the 
performance of Work at no additional cost to the Port Authority.” 

c) Section 2 entitled “Work Required by the Specifications”: Add the following as
the third sentence of the last paragraph to this Section:

“Sodium acetate will be supplied by the Port Authority to the Contractor at no 
cost to the Contractor.” 

d) Section 2 entitled “Work Required by the Specifications”: Add the following as
the final sentence of the last paragraph to this Section:

“The Port Authority will allow the Contractor to fuel its vehicles and 
equipment while performing Work at the Facility at no cost to the Port 
Authority.” 

e) Section 4 entitled “Personnel Requirements”: Delete the last sentence of the first
paragraph and replace it with the following:

“It is the Contractor’s responsibility to determine if any of its vehicles require 
the operators to have CDL licenses, with Medical Examiner’s Certificate, to 
operate such equipment, and the Contractor is responsible for obtaining the 
licenses.” 

f) Section 7 entitled “Communications Device”: Delete this Section in its entirety and
replace it with the following:

“The Contractor shall provide to all employees under this Contract a cellular 
phone as approved by the Port Authority for use at the Facility while Work is 
being performed to ensure constant communications between the Contractor’s 
employees and the Manager. All costs associated with communications devices 
shall be borne by the Contractor and shall not be separately billable to the Port 
Authority. The Contractor shall provide all cellular phone numbers to the 
Manager prior to the start of the Contract and each Snow Season and 
immediately as phone numbers change.” 

g) Section 10 entitled “GPS Tracking System Requirements”: Add the following as
the last sentence to this Section:

“The Contractor shall provide the Manager access to the GPS tracking system 
for tracking and reporting purposes.” 

h)  Section 11 entitled “Space Provided to the Contractor”: Delete the second
paragraph in its entirety and replace it with the following:

“For times during the term of this Contract which are not in the Snow Season, 
the space provided to the Contractor during the Snow Season will remain 
available for storage of heavy equipment and vehicles. However, no additional 
space is guaranteed during the offseason.” 
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i)   Section 10 entitled “Space Provided to the Contractor”: Add the following as the 

last paragraph to this Section: 
“Storage space shall not be used for repairs or other activities of the Contractor. 
Parking space will be provided to the Contractor for its employees while they 
are performing Work under this Contract.”   

 
 

   
II. BIDDER'S QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following information is available in response to questions submitted by prospective 
Bidders.  The responses should not be deemed to answer all questions which have been 
submitted by Bidders to the Port Authority.  It addresses only those questions which the Port 
Authority has deemed to require additional information and/or clarification.  The fact that 
information has not been supplied with respect to particular questions asked by Bidders does 
not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any meaning, construction, or 
implication with respect to the terms.  
 
The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the information 
contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information accurately represents 
the conditions that would be encountered during the performance of the Contract. The 
furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not create or be deemed to create 
any obligation or liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and each Bidder, by submitting 
its Bid, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the foregoing information, and that it shall 
not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefor in any manner whatsoever.  
Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no representation, statement or promise, of the 
Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers, agents, representatives, or employees, whether 
made orally or in writing, shall impair or limit the effect of the warranties of the Bidder 
required by this Bid or Contract and the Bidder agrees that it shall not hold the Port Authority 
liable or responsible therefor in any manner whatsoever. 
The Questions and Answers numbering sequence will be continued sequentially in any 
forthcoming Addenda that may be issued.   

 
Question #1 During the offseason, will the Contractor be required to move its 

equipment? 
Answer #1 No. See modification D h). 

 
Question #2 If both contracts (Bid #46297 for non-aeronautical public areas and 

Bid # 46298 for aeronautical operations areas) are awarded to the 
same Contractor, will a separate trailer for staging personnel be 
permitted for each location? 

Answer #2 No. 
 

Question #3 Is there separate pricing for snow laborers, hand shovelers and snow 
blowers? 
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Answer #3 No. 
 

Question #4 What deicing materials are required, and will the Port Authority 
supply the materials?  

Answer #4 See above modification D c).  
 

Question #5 Will the Port Authority allow the Contractor to fuel its vehicles and 
equipment during operations at the Facility? 

Answer #5 See above modification D d). 
 

Question #6 Will parking space be provided to the Contractor for it employees 
performing work? 

Answer #6 See above modification D i).   
 

Question #7 Does the GPS apply to all pieces of equipment, or just vehicles? 
Answer #7 Refer to Part V Section 10 entitled “GPS Tracking System 

Requirements” 
 

Question #8 Does the Contractor have to furnish a GPS monitoring system to the 
Port Authority? Most GPS systems work off a website. 

Answer #8 No.  See above modification D g). 
 

Question #9 Will the current contract pricing sheets be made available? 
Answer #9 See attached. 

 
Question #10 In Part III, it states that the Contractor is compensated for each 1/10th 

of an inch of snow removed. Please confirm that “snow removed” 
shall be defined as all snowfall accumulations as recorded at JFK 
according to the NOAA. 

Answer #10 Refer to Specifications Section 2 entitled “Work Required by the 
Specifications”. 
 

Question #11 When there is no more removal of snow required, will the Port 
Authority release the Contractor and its equipment from standby 
mode at the Facility?  
 

Answer #11  No.  The release of the Contractor and its equipment will be at the 
discretion of the Manager. 

Question #12 For Liquidated Damage iv, if any piece of equipment not repaired or 
replaced is no longer needed due to removal services ending, would 
damages continue to be assessed?  
 

Answer #12 See above modification B. 
 

Question #13 Does the Contractor determine when activation begins?  
Answer #13 Refer to Specifications Section 3 entitled “Activation of Contractor”. 
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Question #14 Is a CDL license required? 
Answer #14 See above modification D e). 

 
Question #15 All operators must have cell phone or communications device. Is there 

a specific system required?  
 

Answer #15 No. See above modification D f). 
Question #16 Please confirm that Supervisors are required to have the annual SIDA 

IDs, and not just Port Authority Snow IDs. 
Answer #16 Refer to Part V Section 6 entitled “Airport Security Identification 

Card Requirements”. 
Question #17 Is a trailer for staging personnel permitted airside where equipment is 

staged? 
Answer #17 Yes, portable trailers as approved by the Manager are permitted. 

 
Question #18 There is no Bobcat-type Skid Steer Loader or a Compact Loader 

listed in the Pricing Sheets for Supplemental Work. Shouldn’t both 
pieces of equipment be included? 
 

Answer #18 See above modification C.  
Question #19 Area B requires a tow behind center line broom. Can the Contractor 

substitute a broom equivalent? 
Answer #19 Yes, as approved by the Manager. 
Question #20 Is a map of JFK available? 
Answer #20 See attached. 
Question #21 Will the attendance sheet form the Facility Inspection meeting be 

made available? 
Answer #21 See attached. 

 
 

 
FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY, ATTACHED IS THE PRICING FROM 
THE MOST RECENT PURCHASE: 
 
The Port Authority of New York and New Jersey does not guarantee the relevancy of the 
pricing material as it may pertain to proposals solicited for other contracts.  Bidders are 
cautioned that the use of this information to determine future bid prices, or for any other 
purpose, shall be at the Bidder’s own risk.  Bid prices should be based on the Bidder’s 
costs, overhead and profit.  The material requested may be based on a different 
specification and/or different quantity or delivery requirements than those in future 
solicitations. 
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This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your Bid upon submission.  
In case any Bidder fails to conform to these instructions, its Bid will nevertheless be 
construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed. 

 
      THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
 
 
      SELENE ORTEGA, MANAGER 
      COMMODITIES & SERVICES DIVISION 
       
 
 
BIDDER'S FIRM NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO 
JOHN SANTIAGO AT John.Santiago@panynj.gov OR (212) 435-4613. 



PART IV – SIGNATURE SHEET, NAME AND RESIDENCE OF PRINCIPALS SHEET AND PRICING 
SHEET(S)

PART IV - 6

YEAR 1 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK

          Estimated             Hourly            Total Estimated 
Equipment Hours Rate* Price – Year 1

1) 3 cubic yd. Payloader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

2) 17 cubic yd. Dump Truck 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

3) Jeep with 7 ft. Plow 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

4) Thermal Snow Melter – 150 ton 48 x $___________ =  $____________ 

5) Thermal Snow Melter – 75 ton 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

6) Highway Plow Truck with 7 ft. Blade
& 10 yd. Spreader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

7) Four-wheel Mechanical Sweeper,
Duel Gutter Brooms & Dump 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

8) Payloader/Wheeled Dozer Power
Angled Plows with Minimum Blade
Width 20 ft. & Minimum Height 42 in. 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

9) Medium Duty Truck with 10 ft. Blade
& 5 yd. Spreader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

10) Spreader Plow Combination with a
Minimum 5 yd. Spreader & 7 ft. Plow
Blades 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

* Hourly Rates are all-inclusive. See Specifications.

B. Total Estimated Contract Price for Supplemental Work

to Utilize Equipment - Year 1:     $_______________ 
 (Sum of the Total Estimated Prices for each piece of 
equipment set forth in 1 to 11 of this Pricing Sheet) 

C. Total Estimated Contract Price - Year 1:     $________________ 
 (Sum of A+B) 

$___________ =  $____________ x 24 
11) Compact Loader with Box Plow 9' - 12'

Revised 6/21/2016



PART IV - 8 
PART IV – SIGNATURE SHEET, NAME AND RESIDENCE OF PRINCIPALS SHEET AND PRICING 
SHEET(S)

YEAR 2 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK

          Estimated             Hourly            Total Estimated 
Equipment Hours Rate* Price – Year 2

1) 3 cubic yd. Payloader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

2) 17 cubic yd. Dump Truck 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

3) Jeep with 7 ft. Plow 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

4) Thermal Snow Melter – 150 ton 48 x $___________ =  $____________ 

5) Thermal Snow Melter – 75 ton 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

6) Highway Plow Truck with 7 ft. Blade
& 10 yd. Spreader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

7) Four-wheel Mechanical Sweeper,
Duel Gutter Brooms & Dump 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

8) Payloader/Wheeled Dozer Power
Angled Plows with Minimum Blade
Width 20 ft. & Minimum Height 42 in. 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

9) Medium Duty Truck with 10 ft. Blade
& 5 yd. Spreader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

10) Spreader Plow Combination with a
Minimum 5 yd. Spreader & 7 ft. Plow
Blades 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

* Hourly Rates are all-inclusive. See Specifications.

B. Total Estimated Contract Price for Supplemental Work

to Utilize Equipment - Year 2:     $_______________ 
 (Sum of the Total Estimated Prices for each piece of 
equipment set forth in 1 to 11 of this Pricing Sheet) 

C. Total Estimated Contract Price - Year 2:     $________________ 
 (Sum of A+B) 

$___________ =  $____________ x 24 
11) Compact Loader with Box Plow 9' - 12'

Revised 6/21/2016



PART IV - 10 
PART IV – SIGNATURE SHEET, NAME AND RESIDENCE OF PRINCIPALS SHEET AND PRICING 
SHEET(S)

YEAR 3 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK

          Estimated             Hourly            Total Estimated 
Equipment Hours Rate* Price – Year 3

1) 3 cubic yd. Payloader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

2) 17 cubic yd. Dump Truck 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

3) Jeep with 7 ft. Plow 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

4) Thermal Snow Melter – 150 ton 48 x $___________ =  $____________ 

5) Thermal Snow Melter – 75 ton 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

6) Highway Plow Truck with 7 ft. Blade
& 10 yd. Spreader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

7) Four-wheel Mechanical Sweeper,
Duel Gutter Brooms & Dump 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

8) Payloader/Wheeled Dozer Power
Angled Plows with Minimum Blade
Width 20 ft. & Minimum Height 42 in. 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

9) Medium Duty Truck with 10 ft. Blade
& 5 yd. Spreader 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

10) Spreader Plow Combination with a
Minimum 5 yd. Spreader & 7 ft. Plow
Blades 24 x $___________ =  $____________ 

* Hourly Rates are all-inclusive. See Specifications.

B. Total Estimated Contract Price for Supplemental Work

to Utilize Equipment - Year 3:     $_______________ 
 (Sum of the Total Estimated Prices for each piece of 
equipment set forth in 1 to 11 of this Pricing Sheet) 

C. Total Estimated Contract Price - Year 3:     $________________ 
 (Sum of A+B) 

$___________ =  $____________ x 24 
11) Compact Loader with Box Plow 9' - 12'

Revised 6/21/2016



I. 

DESCRIPTION 

I. Area I

2. Area II

3. Area III

4. Area IV

5. Area V

6. Area VI

7. Area VIII

II. 

DESCRIPTION 

SNOW LABOR 

PRICING SHEET· A 

FIRST YEAR - SNOW REMOVAL 

ESTIMATED UNIT 
ANNUAL PRICE 

QUANTITY PER 
1/lOth 1/lOth of an Inch 
Inches 

240 x $�,/
= 

$ 
$ Cfif. / 240 x = $ 

240 x $ 2,q3,/ = $ 

240 x $ )11.,,. = $ 

240 x $ i-qa, ,,. = $ 

240 x $ /Jt.� = $ 

240 x $ ff." = $ 

Revised 6/6/2011 
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ANNUAL 

CONTRACT 
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TOTAL FOR PART I:$ �(, I 1 12 6, .,...,.... 
(Add lines i through 7) 

ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL 

QUANTITY 
HOURS 

2000 x $ 

UNIT 
PRICE 

CHARGE 
PER HOUR 

3�, PO

TOTAL FOR PART II:$ 

ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL 

CONTRACT 
PRICE 

= $ , 6 , Q().() , .,,,..I 

PART IV· 5 
PART IV - SIGNATURE SHEET, NAME AND RESIDENCE OF PRINCIPALS SHEET AND PRICING 
SHEET(S) 

Rev. 2/12/10 (PA/PATH) 

<I\/ fl IA! I i"-C..-- J I /'

Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)



Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)



Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)



Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)



Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)



Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)



Snowlift LLC Contract 4600008761 (Aeronautical)
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